
Cabinet 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Cabinet to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 11 June 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 26 March 2019.

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Modern Slavery Statement 

Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety.

(Pages 5 - 14)

5  Residential services re-design 

Deputy City Mayor

(Pages 15 - 42)

6  Any other urgent business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3318
Karen Berry Service Manager E-Mail: karen.berry@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET

26th March 2019

Meeting commenced: 10.05 a.m.
“                  finished: 10.35 a.m.

PRESENT

John Merry CBE                Deputy City Mayor (In the Chair)

LEAD MEMBERS:
Bill Hinds                            Finance and Support Services
David Lancaster, MBE       Environment and Community Safety
John Ferguson                   Workforce and Industrial Relations
Gina Reynolds                    Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing
Derek Antrobus                  Planning and Sustainable Regeneration 

EXECUTIVE SUPPORT MEMBERS (at the invitation of the City Mayor):
John Walsh                        Education and Learning
Jane Hamilton                    Social Care and Mental Health 
Roger Jones           Transport

OFFICERS:
Jim Taylor                          Chief Executive
Joanne Hardman               Chief Finance Officer
Ben Dolan                          Strategic Director, Place
Linda Stefek            Service Manager
Sharon Hubber            Assistant Director, Specialist Services
Mike Kelly Head of Integrated Looked After Children’s Services
Gillian Mclauchlan Consultant in Public Health
Andrew Leigh Head of Housing and Strategy
Gareth James Legal Services
Mike Relph                         Senior Democratic Services Advisor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Paul Dennett, Councillor Paula 
Boshell, Councillor Tracy Kelly and Councillor Lisa Stone and Charlotte Ramsden, 
Debbie Brown, Sam Betts and Miranda Carruthers-Watt.
  

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2019, were approved as a correct 
record.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

4.      GREATER MANCHESTER CLEAN AIR PLAN - OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE
 

Councillor Derek Antrobus, Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
Development, introduced this report which reiterated the health challenge presented 
by poor air quality, the legal context and the approach and timescales that H.M. 
Government had directed local authorities to follow in order to address predicted 
excess nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels. As a consequence a Greater Manchester 
Steering Group had developed a Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan - Outline 
Business Case, which set out the region’s approach to tackling this key public health 
priority, as well as strengthening its case in bidding for the necessary funding

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the Council is legally obliged to produce an outline business 
case to reduce nitrogen dioxide exceedances, following the Secretary of State 
issuing a direction under the Environment Act 1995, be noted.

(2) THAT the feasibility study undertaken to date, be adopted.

(3) THAT further stakeholder engagement and public consultation is an 
essential part of the process to help inform and refine ongoing work to produce a full 
business case by the end of the calendar year, be noted.

(4) THAT H.M. Government be requested to provide the financial 
support necessary to enable the Council to meet its legal limits for nitrogen dioxide.

(5) THAT, despite Salford City Council being required to address 
nitrogen oxide exceedances H.M. Government has not yet addressed this issue for 
its own assets, including Highways England and the motorway network, be noted.

(6) THAT approval be given to the submission of Greater Manchester 
Clean Air Plan - Outline Business Case to H.M. Government's Joint Air Quality Unit.

     (7) THAT approval be given to the commencement of the public
conversation and engagement activity from 15 May 2019.

     (8) THAT further reports will be submitted to Cabinet on the proposals 
for statutory consultation, informed by the outcome of the public conversation and 
engagement, together with seeking formal approval of the full business case, be noted.
 

     (9) THAT Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) be authorised to
continue with the activity to produce the full business case on the Council’s behalf 
under the direction of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Steering Group.

         (10) THAT the Strategic Director Place, in consultation with the Lead 
Member for Planning and Sustainable Development, the Lead Member for Adult 
Services, Health and Wellbeing and the Director of Public Health, be given delegated 
authority to approve the submission of any appropriate supplementary information.

5.    FOSTERING STRATEGY AND THE REVIEW OF ALLOWANCES

Councilor John Merry, Deputy City Mayor, introduced this report which indicated 

Page 2



3

Salford Foster carers cared for the majority of Salford’s Looked After Children (LAC) 
population. They were provided with a weekly allowance to meet the costs of caring 
for the children in placement, which had not been increased for over 10 years, 
making Salford are one of the lowest paying local authorities at time when others 
had increased payments to assist with recruitment and retention, and Independent 
Fostering Agencies (IFAs) had increased in numbers in already competitive market. 
As a consequence the case was now made for a 40% increase to the skills reward 
element of the allowance and a 2% rise for foster carers on the Focus Scheme. This 
in turn would  address Salford City Council’s position in relation to other local 
authorities, aid recruitment through offering a more attractive rate and evidence the 
commitment to support and retaining foster carers in the City.

Councillor David Lancaster sought clarification on a number of technical issues 
contained in the report. Councillor John Merry said this would be provided separately 
and directly to him outside of the meeting.

RESOLVED: THAT approval be given to an increase in the allowances paid to 
Salford foster carers of 40% on the Skills Reward element and 2% for carers on the 
Focus Scheme, with a future proofing of 2 % increase per year for the skills payment 
and focus scheme. 

6.    SALFORD’S HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY REVIEW 2019

Andrew Leigh, Head of Housing and Strategy, introduced this report, which indicated 
two years had elapsed since the introduction of the most recent Housing Allocations
Policy (2016). In order to respond to new statutory duties resulting from the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 the City Mayor, in August 2018, had agreed to
conduct a review of and update the Policy. The outcomes of that process and 
associated consultation, had informed recommended changes to the Policy, which 
were now presented for approval.

Concerns were raised with regard to the emphasis and methods for encouraging 
persons, who lived in under-occupied homes, to seek transfers and how this could 
be incorporated within the revised Policy. It was agreed this was an important issue 
which required further and more detailed consideration.

RESOLVED:  (1) THAT approval be given to the revised Allocations Policy and 
recommended changes to the Policy as detailed in the report Salford’s Housing 
Allocation Policy 2019. 

 (2) THAT the Head of Housing and Strategy be requested to consider 
options for encouraging persons living in under-occupied homes to seek transfers 
and submit a report to a future meeting.

7.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED: THAT, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that, they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in 
the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) to the Act.

Page 3



4

8.    STRATEGIC INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITY - MANCHESTER AIRPORT

Joanne Hardman, Chief Financial Officer, introduced this report which outlined plans 
for investment into the Manchester Airport Group of companies in order to support 
continued passenger growth, together with the opportunity for Salford City Council, 
together with the other nine district Councils within Greater Manchester, to invest in 
and support the development proposals.

It was suggested there was a need to be provided with a general update on the
activities of the Manchester Airport Group. The Chief Executive replied that this 
would be submitted to a future meeting.

Reference was made to any potential risks associated with the proposed investment. 
It was indicated these had been fully evaluated in accordance with the appropriate 
financial procedures and guidelines.

RESOLVED:  (1) THAT the proposed arrangements for investment in Manchester 
Airport, through additional equity investment be noted. 

 (2) THAT approval be given to the proposed investment.

 (3) THAT the City Solicitor and Chief Finance Officer, in consultation
 with the Lead Member for Finance and Support  Services, be given delegated 
authority to negotiate and finalise the detailed  contractual and commercial 
arrangements in respect of the proposed investment.

(4) THAT the City Solicitor be authorised to enter into any necessary 
agreements, or documents, to give effect to the above recommendations.

9.    GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY MINUTES.

      RESOLVED; THAT the minutes of the meeting of the Greater Manchester 
         Combined Authority (GMCA) held on 25th January 2019, be noted. 

Page 4



Part 1 – OPEN to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF
THE LEAD MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY

___________________________________________________________________

TO Cabinet
11th June 2019

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Salford City Council - Modern Slavery Statement
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Cabinet endorses approves the Modern Slavery Statement.
___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

In 2018 Salford City Council was approached by Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority and asked to consider the adoption of a modern slavery statement. 

Salford City Council had already signed up to the Co-Operative Party Charter 
against Modern Slavery and as such the production of a Modern Slavery Statement 
was deemed to further benefit the City Council’s vision to create 'A better and fairer 
Salford’.  

Following a number of meetings and the active support of the Skills and Work 
Commissioning Team, Human Resources, Procurement, Legal Services, Marketing 
and Communications and Community Safety, the attached ‘Modern Slavery 
Statement’ has been produced for Cabinet’s consideration.

Subject to approval it is proposed that this Modern Slavery Statement will be formally 
published and the actions contained within it implemented.
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS:

Modern slavery is a serious and brutal crime in which people are treated as 
commodities and exploited for criminal gain. 

Our ‘Modern Slavery Statement’ sets out the actions that the City Council will take to 
tackle human trafficking and modern slavery. These actions are referenced on pages 
2, 3 and 4 of our statement and fall under the headings of Money, Procurement, 
Taking action to promptly identify and support victims and Partnership Work.
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Our statement covers direct employees of the Council, agency workers and services 
delivered on behalf of the Council by third party organisations in the Council’s supply 
chains.
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Modern Slavery Statement attached. Modern 
Slavery Act 2015,
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  No
___________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Salford Community Safety Strategy 
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  N/A
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  N/A
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Provided by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, Tel 219 6323

The Modern Slavery Act was enacted in March 2015, and set out to:

 consolidate and clarify existing modern slavery and human trafficking offences 
and increased the maximum sentences for committing these offences

 introduce slavery and trafficking prevention orders and slavery and trafficking 
risk orders – which can be used to disrupt activities by modern slavery 
perpetrators

 create the role of the Independent Anti-Slavery Commissioner
 introduce support and protection for victims including a defence for victims of 

slavery or trafficking who commit an offence, measures on the presumption of 
age of child victims of modern slavery and introduced the role of Independent 
Child Trafficking Advocates

 introduce a requirement for certain businesses to produce and publish a 
modern slavery statement on what they are doing to tackle modern slavery 
and trafficking in their supply chains.

In response to Section 54 of the Act which obliges the Council (along with private 
business) to have transparency in their supply chain, the Council must produce a 
Modern Slavery Statement, which should set out what steps the Council is taking to 
ensure modern slavery is not taking place in conducting its business or in its supply 
chains.

The Council has implemented the terms of the Act into its contracts, and includes the 
following clause within its standard terms and conditions:

Page 6



“The Provider shall comply with the provisions of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and 
shall take such steps as is necessary to promote ethical business practice and policy 
to protect employees and workers from abuse and exploitation.  The Provider shall 
use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not 
taking place in its supply chains.”

___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There are no direct financial implications.
___________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS – Incorporated within the body of the Modern 
Slavery Statement
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Service Reform and People 
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Stephen Kearney Tel 0161 686 5810  
Catherine Connors Tel 0161 793 2442 

___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards
___________________________________________________________________

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Salford City Council - Modern Slavery Statement

Foreword by City Mayor Paul Dennett ‘Modern slavery is a serious and brutal 
crime in which people are treated as commodities and exploited for criminal gain. 

Many victims are not known to the authorities because of the nature of this vile crime 
but it is estimated that tens of thousands of people are in modern slavery in the UK 
today. 

There is no typical victim of modern slavery but people can be exploited for work, 
labour, criminality and/or put into domestic servitude.  Victims can be trafficked all 
over the world but can also be trafficked within the UK for the purposes of 
exploitation.

The true extent of modern slavery in the UK and globally is unknown but estimates 
suggest internationally, 45.8 million people are in some form of modern slavery in 
167 different countries, including the UK. Over five million victims are under the age 
of 18.

Salford City Council supports the Co-Operative Party Charter against Modern 
Slavery as part of its vision to create 'a better and fairer Salford’ by tackling poverty 
and inequality and ensuring the city provides opportunities for all.

We say loudly and clearly modern slavery has no place in Salford and are 
determined to do all we can to stamp out this appalling crime’. 

Page 9



Salford City Council’s Modern Slavery statement (Launched in 2019)

Our Modern Slavery statement sets out the actions Salford City Council will take to 
ensure we do not condone or support human trafficking and modern slavery in any 
way and that we encourage the identification, rescue and support of victims and 
prosecution of those who exploit and harm them. 

Our values of pride, passion, people and personal responsibility underpin the way 
that we work, make decisions and do business and reflect our commitment to taking 
action on human trafficking and modern slavery. 

Salford City Council is also committed to the highest possible standards of 
openness, probity and accountability and encourages employees with serious 
concerns about any aspect of the council’s work to speak up. This includes any 
situation that may give rise to a risk of modern slavery or human trafficking.
As an employer, Salford City Council sets high employment standards, which applies 
to our direct employees, agency workers and suppliers. 

Our Modern Slavery statement is proposed to be an organic document that reflects 
the changing picture of modern slavery. Whilst a number of actions are listed below, 
the aims of this statement will be embedded in our respective business plans with 
further actions encouraged across all areas of our business.

Action 1: Money 

Under modern slavery people are often exploited for financial gain with those who 
employ them paying well below even the minimum wage. 

Salford City Council rejects all forms of labour exploitation and sets high employment 
standards as an example to other businesses and organisations in our city. 

 In 2013 Salford was the first council in Greater Manchester to pay our employees 
the ‘real’ Living Wage as set by the Living Wage Foundation. From April 2019, the 
new pay agreement between the council and trade unions will further improve the 
pay of council employees, particularly those on lower grades.

The Salford City Mayor’s Charter for Employment Standards aims to improve 
working conditions in the city by setting a benchmark for local employers whether in 
business or the  public or community and voluntary sectors. Over 100 employers 
have already signed up to the charter.

Salford City Council expects its partner organisations and supply chain to adhere to 
fair rates of employee pay by paying or working towards the real Living Wage and 
further demonstrated by Salford’s ambition to become a real Living Wage city. 

Action 2: Procurement

Salford City Council’s procurement and contract management policies and 
processes have been adapted to address the risk of modern slavery. 

Page 10



Organisations providing goods and/or services to the council must agree to comply 
with the provisions of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, promote ethical business 
practice, protect employees and workers from abuse and exploitation and endeavour 
to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in their supply chains.

Under this action, Salford City Council will also: 

 Challenge any abnormally low–cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon 
the potential contractor practising modern slavery

 Highlight in tender documents that contracted workers are free to join a trade 
union and are not to be treated unfairly by belonging to a trade union

 Recommend in tender documents that contractors adopt a whistle-blowing 
policy which enables and encourages staff to report any suspicions of modern 
slavery

 Ensure our council staff responsible for services and contract management 
carefully and regularly review contracted spend to identify any risk of modern 
slavery and contact the relevant agency if any risks or concerns are identified

Action 3: Taking action to promptly identify and support victims 

Under the Modern Slavery Act 2015, which covers trafficking and slavery related 
offences, councils must notify the Home Office of all potential victims and make 
enquiries where modern slavery offences are suspected.

Sixteen people from a range of organisations across Salford, including Salford City 
Council have been trained to deliver training on modern slavery to raise awareness 
and help identify victims more effectively and make referrals into support. 

The training covers the Greater Manchester, UK and global picture, trafficking, 
modern slavery, people smuggling, how to spot the signs and how to help victims. 

Further training is planned for 2019 and will be mandatory for procurement and 
commissioning staff. 

Salford City Council recognises that identifying, protecting and safeguarding 
potential victims is just the start of the support process. We recognise that victims 
need long-term support and the council is committed to making sure services 
recognise this and address barriers which may prevent rehabilitation. This help may 
include access to welfare benefits, housing, health and social care, legal advice and 
employment support.

Action 4: Partnership work 

Salford City Council works with a range of partner organisations across the public, 
private and community, voluntary and social enterprise sectors and the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. 

Partnership responsibility for human trafficking and modern slavery is a priority for 
Salford Community Safety Partnership which, tackles organised criminals through 
gathering intelligence, disrupting their activities and steering young people towards 

Page 11



better futures through Project Gulf  and Salford’s Safeguarding Boards which work 
together to keep adults and children safe, develop expertise and share best practice.

Salford City Council supports initiatives including the modern slavery week of action 
to raise awareness and share the message in our local communities and works with 
Programme Challenger’s modern slavery co-ordination unit, led by Greater 
Manchester Police, at Greater Manchester level.  

Appendix

Modern slavery includes a range of crimes, including:

• sexual exploitation

• domestic servitude

• forced labour

• criminal exploitation

• organ harvesting

• forced begging

• forced benefit fraud

• forced marriage

• illegal adoption

Forced labour/child labour is any work or service which adults or children do against 
their will, under the threat of punishment or as a result of coercion, abduction, fraud 
or deception. This can include begging, sexual services, manual labour  and 
domestic servitude.

Servitude is an aggravated form of forced or compulsory labour. The fundamental 
difference between servitude and forced or compulsory labour is that the victim feels 
their condition is permanent and the situation is unlikely to change.

Slavery is similar to servitude but the exploiter creates a sense of ‘owning’ the victim.

Useful links

What is modern slavery?

https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/types-of-abuse/modern-
slavery/

Trafficking procedure flow chart

https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/complex-
safeguarding/trafficking/trafficking-procedure/

Page 12

https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/types-of-abuse/modern-slavery/
https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/types-of-abuse/modern-slavery/
https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/complex-safeguarding/trafficking/trafficking-procedure/
https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/complex-safeguarding/trafficking/trafficking-procedure/


General information on human trafficking 

https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/complex-
safeguarding/trafficking/

Further help
Modern slavery helpline: 08000 121 700 or online at: 
www.modernslaveryhelpline.org 

Provides information and advice about modern slavery, a 24 hour telephone 
reporting line, online reporting through the website, and can provide training to public 
sector organisations on modern slavery. Information on modern slavery available 

Page 13

https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/complex-safeguarding/trafficking/
https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/for-professionals/complex-safeguarding/trafficking/
http://www.modernslaveryhelpline.org/
http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/modern-slavery


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S 
SERVICES

 TO CABINET 

ON 
11th June 2019. 

TITLE: Residential services re-design

RECOMMENDATIONS:

To accept the recommendation for the permanent closure of the former 262 
Children’s Home in the context of the current redesign of residential services 
provision in the city.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The looked after children’s service has been working alongside the Innovation Unit 
and colleagues in Greater Manchester to adopt and adapt the North Yorkshire County 
Council model of ‘No Wrong Door’. The model has been evaluated and widely 
acclaimed by the DFE and Ofsted as a highly successful model, offering targeted and 
bespoke support to children and young people on the ‘edge of care’ and has led to 
significant reductions in the numbers of young people requiring long term residential 
care..

Salford proposes to adopt and adapt a single hub offering intensive support to young 
people, linked with both fostering and residential care.

 262 Liverpool Road Children’s Home was temporarily closed in February 2018 and 
has had no children in residence since the temporary closure. The building is no 
longer considered an appropriate size or setting to offering good quality residential 
care, within the context of the service review and redesign..

The consultation is completed and the recommendation is to permanently close, as 
part of the wider redesign of services.. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS:

Salford has a long standing commitment and view that residential care provision is 
best provided by local authorities than the private sector, whilst recognising that there 
will be some young people whose individual circumstances and care needs are best 
met outside of the Council’s boundaries.

Salford has a high number of looked after children and it is acknowledged that we 
needed to review our service delivery to ensure that greater support is offered to 
families and young people both inside and outside office hours, to maintain young 
people living within their immediate and wider family. 

A review of the residential services highlighted a large percentage of older young 
people are admitted into residential care for short periods, it is considered that if 
greater support was readily available at the ‘crisis point’ for the family, many of these 
admissions would have been prevented. 

We also recognise that we need to increase our level of recruitment of new foster 
carers to both meet the demands of our looked after children numbers, but also and 
significantly, to offer an alternative care provision for those young people in 
residential care. 

Salford, as part of this wider strategic approach has recently approved significant 
additional investment into the fostering service to increase foster carer payments 
aimed at both retaining our existing carers and attracting much needed new foster 
carers.
   
The looked after children’s service has been working alongside the Innovation Unit 
and colleagues in Greater Manchester to adopt and adapt the North Yorkshire 
County Council model of ‘No Wrong Door’. The model has been evaluated and 
widely acclaimed by the DFE and Ofsted as a successful model, offering targeted 
and bespoke support to children and young people on the ‘edge of care’ and has led 
to significant reductions in the numbers of young people requiring long term 
residential care.

It replaces traditional council-run young peoples' homes with hubs which combine 
residential care with fostering.

Every young person in the No Wrong Door programme is given one key worker 
supported by a single team of trusted and skilled workers. These workers stick with 
the young person through thick and thin to access the right services at the right time 
and in the right place to meet their needs.

Page 16



3

Salford proposes to adopt and adapt a single hub linked to the existing five children’s 
homes in the City, offering residential care for up to 20 young people.

262 Liverpool Road Children’s Home was temporarily closed in February 2018 and 
has had no children in residence since the temporary closure. This decision to 
temporarily close followed a review of the residential service and concerns about the 
appropriateness of the building size and layout in providing good quality residential 
care.

The building itself is a Grade 2 listed building and was used previously as a specialist 
Intermediate Treatment resource centre for many years. 

Historically, residential care was provided in large institutions. It is recognised now that the 
size and mix of young people placed together is a significant factor in achieving better 
outcomes and day to day living. Over the years residential provision has shrunk to much 
smaller delivery models, in response to research in practice. This research, alongside young 
people presenting with more complex needs, has led to this smaller delivery model.

262 Liverpool Road is a 6 bedded home. This is now considered too large, both in terms of 
numbers of young people expected to live together, but in addition the building is too big 
and not considered homely. It is therefore recommended that this is not re-opened as a 
children’s home. The opportunity to consider alternative usage of the building remains open. 

Formal consultation on the proposal to permanently close the home began on 14th 
February 2019 and concluded on 18th March 2019.

The consultation document and draft Community Impact Assessment was shared 
with the staff team, Unison and key stakeholders, outlining the reasons behind the 
proposed permanent closure.

The vast majority of the affected staff wish to remain in their relocated work base 
across the remaining children’s homes. In a couple of cases where staff have 
requested that they would like to be further relocated to another children’s home, 
they have been informed this will be considered as part of the wider review of staffing 
levels across the homes.

The proposal to close 262 Liverpool Road will not result in any compulsory 
redundancies. All of the twelve 262 staff deployed after the temporary closure in 
2018, will be found equivalent positions where possible within the overall residential 
service.

All staff were offered individual 1:1 sessions with HR to discuss their individual 
circumstances and the consultation is now completed. Unison and key stakeholders 
were consulted during the period and there were no adverse views to the proposals 
The consultation is completed and the recommendation is to permanently close. 

At the same time as considering the closure of 262 Liverpool Road Children’s Home, we are 
also undertaking a larger review of current establishment staffing levels across the homes 

Page 17



4

and the amount of annual bank hours expenditure. Initial assessment would indicate that 
current staffing levels would benefit from a small increase to reduce the need for such high 
levels of bank hours being required. The twelve  staff from 262 will therefore fill vacancies 
that exist in other homes but in addition some may be used flexibly as an alternative to use 
of bank staff or as additional staffing to enable the most complex young people to be 
supported in the city.

Working alongside HR, we are beginning to see a reduction in staff absence. The 
recommendations in respect of overall future staffing are being developed as part of the 
redesigned service linked to the No Wrong Door model

We would therefore not want to recommend the releasing of any existing staff who have 
requested VER or VS across all residential units, until this staffing assessment is 
completed.

It should also be noted that whilst Salford is developing the new ‘No Wrong Door’ 
arrangements that our staffing needs will not be finally determined until that round of 
recruitment is completed.

It is anticipated that Salford will greatly benefit from a ‘No Wrong Door’ Hub and will begin to 
reverse the trend in the increasing numbers of looked after children becoming looked after 
through greater support and planned short term admissions, reducing the need for long term 
residential beds in the medium to longer term.     

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

262 cia..docx

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Lorraine Ashton, Deputy Head of Children and 
Families Services (Legal)

The council is subject to a general duty to secure sufficient accommodation that 
meets the needs of looked after children within the its area (s22G Children Act 1989) 
The proposals are consistent with meeting this duty as through appropriate 
commissioning arrangements and alternative provision the council is able to meet its 
statutory responsibilities.

Page 18



5

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Ian Johnson, 778 0220. 

The closure of 262 Liverpool Road will release core funding to help Childrens 
Services achieve the £1.7m council savings target for 2019/20. The level of saving 
that will be delivered in year will become clear once the staffing arrangements for No 
Wrong Door and future residential need are completed in July, the outcome of which 
will be reported to members.

Residential homes are included within the pooled budget arrangements with the CCG 
and any underachievement against the planned savings target will be a pressure 
within the Integrated Care Fund for 2019/20.
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Supplied by: Heather Wilde, HR Consultant

The agreed consultation process has been followed, and one to ones have been 
offered to all staff and all views have been considered and responded to by 
management and HR.  

A suitable period of time has been left to allow for consideration of feedback, 
including key stakeholders, any potential equalities impacts, and feedback from 
Unison.  

In line with the Workforce Change policy it is proposed to assimilate the affected staff 
to equivalent posts within the Residential service.  

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:

CONTACT OFFICER: Mike Kelly TEL NO: 779 7800

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Community Impact Assessment Form

For a summary of this Community Impact Assessment, click here

Title of Community Impact Assessment (CIA): 262 Liverpool Road Children’s Home

Directorate: People

Date of assessment: Initial/Draft 12.2.19.
         Final            12.4.19.

This CIA addresses the potential workforce impact from the proposed closure of 262 Liverpool Road 
Children’s Home.

Section A – What are you impact assessing?

 (Indicate with an “x” which applies):-

A decision to review or change a service x
A strategy
A policy or procedure
A function, service or project x

Are you impact assessing something that is?:-  

New 
Existing x
Being reviewed x
Being reviewed as a result of budget constraints

P
age 21



2

Describe the area you are impact assessing and, where appropriate, the changes you are proposing? 

262 Liverpool Road is a six bedded residential children’s home for young people. It is Ofsted registered to provide residential care to 
young people aged 12 -16 years old.

262 is currently temporarily closed whilst a review of residential services is undertaken. Should a decision be made to permanently close 
the unit, there are no young people currently in placement.

Any decision to permanently close the building will affect 13 staff, and formal consultation will need to be undertaken.

The staff team will need support and guidance as to the alternative options available to them across the Council.

Update 12.4.19.

The home remains closed.
All staff have been found alternative work placements across the remaining Children’s homes in the city.
Consultation sessions and 1:1 sessions have been offered to all the staff team, during the process

P
age 22



3

Section B – Is a Community Impact Assessment required (Screening)?

Consider what you are impact assessing and mark “x” for all the statement(s) below which apply

Service or policy that people use or which apply to people (this could include staff) x
Discretion is exercised or there is potential for people to experience different outcomes. For example, 
planning applications and whether applications are approved or not 
Concerns at local, regional or national level of discrimination/inequalities
Major change, such as  closure, reduction, removal or transfer x
Community, regeneration and planning strategies, organisational or directorate partnership 
strategies/plans
Employment policy – where discretion is not exercised
Employment policy – where discretion is exercised. For example, recruitment or disciplinary process

If none of the areas above apply to your proposals, you will not be required to undertake a full CIA.  Please summarise below why a full 
CIA is not required and send this form to your directorate equality link officer. If you have identified one or more of the above areas, you 
should conduct a full CIA and complete this form. 

Equality Areas
Indicate with an “x” which equality areas are likely to be affected, positively or negatively, by the proposals
Age Religion and/or belief

Disability Sexual Identity

Gender (including pregnancy and maternity) People on a low income (socio-economic inequality)

Gender reassignment Other (please state below) (For example carers, ex 
offenders)

Race

If any of the equality areas above have been identified as being likely to be affected by the proposals, you will be required to undertake a 
CIA. You will need only to consider those areas which you have indicated are likely to be affected by the proposals

P
age 23

http://intranet.salford.gov.uk/cxec-directorate-equality-lead-officers.htm


4

Section C – Monitoring information

C1 Do you currently monitor by the 
following protected characteristics or 
equality areas?

Yes (Y) or 
No (N)

If no, please explain why and / or detail in the action plan at Section E how 
you will prioritise the gathering of this equality monitoring data.

Age Y

Disability Y

Gender (including pregnancy and 
maternity)

Y

Gender Reassignment Y

Race Y

Religion and/or belief Y

Sexual Identity

People on a low income
(socio-economic inequality)

Y

Other (please state) (For example 
carers, ex offenders)

Y

P
age 24



5

Section C (continued) – Consultation

C2 Are you intending to carry out consultation on your proposals?

Yes 

If “no”, please explain your reason(s) why

If “yes”, please give details of your consultation exercise and results below 

30.11.17. Conversation with Unison shop steward regarding proposed temporary closure of 262 and arranging a meeting with the whole 
staff team.

1.12.17. Email sent to staff team inviting them to a meeting on 7th December 17 to discuss proposal.

7.12.17. Meeting held with staff team, Unison and HR to discuss proposal for temporary closure.

18.1.18. Further meeting to discuss temporary closure of 262 with staff team.

19.1.18. Email sent to whole staff team offering 1:1 slots on 22nd January 18.

262 was temporarily closed on 23rd February 2018.

Individual staff have had 1:1 meetings to seek their views on where they would wish to be deployed across the residential services, 
during the temporary closure.

Should the future recommendation be to permanently close 262 Liverpool Road, a period of consultation will be undertaken with the staff 
team commencing on 14th February and will cease on 18th March 2019.

The consultation will include an initial meeting with the staff team, HR representatives and Unison rep to discuss the consultation 
document.

The consultation period will offer all staff a series of dates to meet with a Human Resources officer to discuss their individual 

P
age 25



6

circumstances and explore alternative employment options within the Council.

A weekly meeting between Unison, HR and Head of LAC services will be offered and look to ensure that progress is tightly monitored 
and any issues or concerns are addressed swiftly. 

 Update 12.4.19.

Email sent to 262 staff and Unison inviting them to initial consultation meetings on 12th February and 14th February to outline 
and begin the formal consultation process.

Consultation process formally commenced on 14th February with an end date of 18th March 2019.

All staff offered 1:1 opportunities to meet with HR and service manager during the consultation period.

Consultation paper and draft CIA document shared with staff and Unison on 12th and 14th March. Follow up email sent to those 
staff unable to attend, with papers attached, also offering 1:1 sessions.

Key stakeholders identified and emails sent asking for opinion and feedback on the proposal.

Follow up emails sent out to all staff who didn’t initially take up the offer of individual 1:1 sessions with HR.

15th March, meeting with Unison shop steward, Ameen Hadi to discuss the consultation process so far and to confirm Unison 
and member’s feedback.

18th March, consultation officially closed. 
 
All key stakeholders feedback and information gathered from 1:1 sessions feedback by HR to lead officer.

The vast majority of staff stated that they were happy in their relocated workplace and wished to remain in their new 
workplace. One individual wished to move to another children’s home and another member of staff wished to be considered 
for a different post within her new workplace. All these requests will be considered within a wider review of staffing levels 
across the residential service.

Key stakeholders all responded that they had no objections to the planned closure.

P
age 26



7

Section C (continued) – Analysis 

C3 What information has been analysed 
to inform the content of this CIA? What 
were the findings?

Please include details of, for example, 
service or employee monitoring 
information, consultation findings, any 
national or local research, customer 
feedback, inspection reports, and any 
other information which will inform your 
CIA.

Please specify whether this was existing 
information or was specifically in relation 
to this equality analysis and CIA process

Workforce monitoring information  - this will be drawn from existing HR systems (ESS / SAP)

Consultation findings – this will be information gathered during the consultation process with 
staff and Unison.

.

The consultation will commence on 14th February and cease no sooner than 18th March.

.It is hoped that the consultation will offer staff a meaningful opportunity to discuss and 
consider alternative options to working at 262 Liverpool Road should the recommendation be 
to close.  

Update 12.4.19.

Consultation completed, staff views gathered and feedback given to lead officer. 

The vast majority of staff stated that they were happy in their relocated workplace and 
wished to remain in their new workplace. One individual wished to move to another 
children’s home and another member of staff wished to be considered for a different 
post within her new workplace. All these requests will be considered within a wider 
review of staffing levels across the residential service.

Key stakeholders and Unison all responded that they had no objections to the planned 
closure.

P
age 27



8

 

Section D – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to age 
equality

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
age? 
Will people within certain age 
ranges not be getting the 
outcome they need?
Will people within certain age 
ranges be disadvantaged as a 
result of your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that 
people within certain age ranges 
will experience positive 
outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 

The proposal is specifically age related to looked after young people aged under 
18, although there are currently no young people in residence.

A decision to close 262 Liverpool Road will affect 13 staff, covering a broad range 
of age.

It is envisaged that staff will be treated without discrimination and in accordance 
with local policy and procedures.

Any potential issues identified through the consultation will be considered.

The proposal should not impact on community cohesion.
 

P
age 28



9

impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to 
disability equality

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
disability? 
Will people with disabilities not 
be getting the outcome they 
need?
Will people with disabilities be 
disadvantaged as a result of 
your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that 
people with disabilities will 
experience positive outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

The proposals specifically relate at this moment in time to the staff team. All staff 
will be treated in accordance with policy and procedures.

The proposal should not impact on community cohesion.

All staff will be treated in accordance with existing Council policies on Workforce 
Change, recruitment and selection and Employee Assistance.

Any potential issues identified through the consultation will be considered.

P
age 29



10

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to 
gender equality (this includes 
pregnancy and maternity)

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
gender? 
Will men or women, boys or girls 
not be getting the outcome they 
need?
Will men or women, boys or girls 
be disadvantaged as a result of 
your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that 
men or women, boys or girls will 

It is not considered that the proposal will impact on this equality group.

P
age 30



11

experience positive outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a differential 
impact relating to equality for people 
planning, undergoing or who have 
undergone gender reassignment? 

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your 
analysis?

Are your proposals discriminatory for 
people planning, undergoing or who 
have undergone gender reassignment? 
Will people planning, undergoing or who 
have undergone gender reassignment  
not be getting the outcome they need?
Will people planning, undergoing or who 
have undergone gender reassignment  
be disadvantaged as a result of your 
proposals?
If the impact is negative, how will it be 
reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that people 

It is not considered that the proposal will impact on this equality group.

P
age 31



12

planning, undergoing or who have 
undergone gender reassignment  will 
experience positive outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to impact on 
community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people who share 
a protected characteristic and those who 
do not?
Identify areas where there is potential to 
foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to 
race equality

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
race? 
Will people within certain racial 
groups not be getting the 
outcome they need?
Will people within certain racial 
groups be disadvantaged as a 
result of your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that 
people within certain racial 

All staff will be treated in accordance with existing Council policies on Workforce 
Change, recruitment and selection and Employee Assistance.

Support provided by team members to identified equality groups within Salford will 
continue to be provided. 

Any potential issues identified through the consultation will be considered.

P
age 32



13

groups will experience positive 
outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to 
religion or belief equality 

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
religion or belief? 
Will people of certain religions or 
who have particular beliefs not 
be getting the outcome they 
need?
Will people of certain religions or 
who have particular beliefs be 
disadvantaged as a result of 
your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

It is not considered that the proposal will impact on this equality group.

P
age 33



14

Will the proposals mean that 
people of certain religions or 
who have particular beliefs will 
experience positive outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to 
sexual identity equality

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
sexual identity? 
Will gay, lesbian and/or bi-
sexual people not be getting the 
outcome they need?
Will gay, lesbian and/or bi-
sexual people be disadvantaged 
as a result of your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

All staff will be treated in accordance with existing Council policies on Workforce 
Change, recruitment and selection and Employee Assistance.

Any potential issues identified through the consultation will be considered.

P
age 34



15

Will the proposals mean that 
gay, lesbian and/or bi-sexual 
people will experience positive 
outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact on socio 
economic equality (people on a 
low income)?

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory on the grounds of 
socio economic inequality? 
Will people on a low income not 
be getting the outcome they 
need?
Will people on a low income be 
disadvantaged as a result of 
your proposals?
If the impact is negative, how 

It is not considered that the proposal will impact on this equality group.

P
age 35



16

will it be reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that 
people on a low income will 
experience positive outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

Section D (continued) – Potential impacts and how these will be addressed

Could your proposals have a 
differential impact relating to any 
other equality groups, for 
example, carers, ex offenders?

Yes (Y) No (N) Explain impact(s) and what evidence or data exists to support your analysis?

Are your proposals 
discriminatory in relation to any 
other groups? 
Will people within any other 
groups not be getting the 
outcome they need?
Will people within any other 
groups be disadvantaged as a 
result of your proposals?

n/a.

P
age 36



17

If the impact is negative, how 
will it be reduced or eliminated?

Will the proposals mean that 
people within any other groups 
will experience positive 
outcomes?
Highlight any positive impacts

Are the proposals likely to 
impact on community cohesion?
Is there potential to enhance 
relationships between people 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do 
not?
Identify areas where there is 
potential to foster good relations

If this CIA is about the workforce impact, then you need somewhere in the report to say how you assessed the 
equality impact of the proposed closure itself.  I would not see this as anything other than a ‘screening CIA’ – ie the 
property is closed, and so whilst there is potential impact by removing a particular care home / option on future LAC 
by race, age, disability and sexual identity, mitigation rests in the availability of other children’s homes and placement 
options throughout the city.

Section E – Action Plan and review

Detail in the plan below, actions that you have identified in your CIA, which will eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity 
and/or foster good relations. 
If you are unable to eliminate or reduce negative impact on any of the equality areas, you should explain why

Impact (positive or Proposed action Person(s) Where will action Target date Required outcome

P
age 37



18

negative) identified responsible be monitored? (e.g., 
Directorate 
Business Plan, 
Service Plan, 
Equality Action 
Plan)

Will Salford continue to 
fulfil the legal duty to 
provide appropriate 
accommodation for 
looked after children?

To continue to offer 
good quality residential 
care and 
accommodation to 
children and young 
people across the 
residential homes. 

Mike Kelly LAC Strategic Board.
Corporate Parenting 
Panel.
Regulation 44 visits.
Placement Tracking 
Panel

Annual That children who 
require residential 
care, are 
appropriately 
assessed in line 
with their needs.

Will a permanent 
closure lead to more 
external residential 
placements and 
increased pressures on 
the external placement 
budget.

To continually monitor 
the external placements, 
to ensure that only those 
assessed young people 
in need of an external 
provision are placed 
outside of internal 
provision and not due to 
lack of sufficient in – 
house placements.

Mike Kelly LAC Strategic Board.
Corporate Parenting 
Panel.
Placement Tracking 
Panel

Monthly That the external 
placement budget 
is tightly monitored 
monthly to address 
any issues quickly 
and decisively.

Could making the changes in any of the above areas have a negative effect on other groups? Explain why and what you will do about 
this.
It should be noted that whilst this is a CIA in relation to the workforce, the impact on young people has been considered.
Whilst there is potential impact on future looked after children, by closing a children’s home, this can be mitigated by the 
availability of five other children’s homes run by the Local Authority, Private Sector run homes elsewhere in the City and 
fostering options throughout the City.

P
age 38



19

Review
Your CIA should be reviewed at least every three years, less if it has a significant impact on people. 
Please enter the date your CIA will be reviewed ……………………..You should review progress on your CIA action plan annually.

P
age 39



20

Section F – Summary of your CIA

As your CIA will be published on the council’s website and accessible to the general public, a summary of your CIA is required. Please 
provide a summary of your CIA in the box below. 

Summary of Community Impact Assessment

How did you approach the CIA and what did you find?

The CIA has been considered and completed by the Head of Service, LAC and is based on initial feedback from data, residential 
review and feedback from social work managers.  Additional information will be provided to stakeholders to assist in providing the 
rationale for the proposal.

What are the main areas requiring further attention?

The closure of 262 Liverpool Road as part of the Council’s saving proposals  

Summary of recommendations for improvement

Staff need to be offered alternative positions if 262 Liverpool Road closes. 

P
age 40



21

Section G – Next Steps 

Quality Assurance

When you have completed your CIA, you should send it to your directorate Equality Link Officer who will arrange for it to be quality 
assured. Your CIA will be returned to you if further work is required. It is important that your CIA is robust and of good quality as it may 
be challenged 

“Sign off” within your directorate

Your directorate Equality Link Officer will then arrange for your CIA to be “signed off” within your directorate (see below). Your directorate 
Equality Lead Officer or other senior manager within your directorate should “sign off” your CIA (below).

Name Signature Date

Senior Manager

Lead CIA Officer

Publishing

When your CIA has been signed off within your directorate, your directorate Equality Link Officer will send it to Elaine Barber in the 
Equalities and Cohesion Team for publishing on the council’s website. 

Monitoring

Your directorate Equality Link Officer will also send your CIA to your directorate Performance Officer where the actions identified within 
your CIA will be entered into Covalent, the council’s performance management monitoring software so that progress can be monitored 
as appropriate.

P
age 41

http://intranet.salford.gov.uk/customer/change-management/changemgmt-sppp/equalitiescohesionteam/cxec-what_the_team_does-6/impactassessments/cxec-directorate-equality-lead-officers.htm
http://intranet.salford.gov.uk/customer/change-management/changemgmt-sppp/equalitiescohesionteam/cxec-what_the_team_does-6/impactassessments/cxec-directorate-equality-lead-officers.htm
http://intranet.salford.gov.uk/customer/change-management/changemgmt-sppp/equalitiescohesionteam/cxec-what_the_team_does-6/impactassessments/cxec-directorate-equality-lead-officers.htm
mailto:elaine.barber@salford.gov.uk
http://www.salford.gov.uk/impact-assess.htm


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Modern Slavery Statement
	modern slavery statement 05 03 19

	5 Residential services re-design
	CIA


